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Located 30 kilometres from Madrid on expressway A-2, on the banks of the river after which it is
named, Alcala de Henares today is a Sizeable city with a population of 170,000.

Archaglogicd ruinsfound in theareaindicatethat the first human settlements date from de heolithic Era.
In Roman timesit was an important centre known as Complutum, aname it traded for the current one
during Mudim rule.

After the Reconquest, Alcalabecame adomain of the Archbishops of Toledo, Who built alarge palace-
fortresshere asasecond residence. In 1293 King Sancho |V granted Alcalathe privilege of creating an
“Academy of Generd Schools’, the origin of its seven century-old university.

In 1499 cisneros decided to found auniversity, which opened itsdoors eight yearslater, making Alcaa
the most important intellectua centrein Spain & thet time. The city wasto bethe birthplace or resdence
of important political and cultura celebrities. Nebrija, Catalina de Aragdn, the emperor Ferdinand,

Cervantes, Quevedo, Tirso de Molina, Caderon de laBarca, Lope de Vega, St Ignatious of Loyola,

etc.

King Charles Ill granted Alcaa de Henares de title of “city” in 1687. But soon adter its historic
Complutense University was moved to Madrid in 1836, the city fell into decadence, from which it did
not recover until the middle of the Twentieth Century.

Alcdade Henares began to prosper again early in the sixtieswith the advent of new industry. It isone of
the foremogt cities in Greater Madrid today thanks to the renewd of artistic and cultura activities



concomitat with the re-establishement of the universty some years ago.
ST ILDEPHONSE COLLEGE

Congtruction on this building was begun in 1537 by Rodrigo Gil de Hontafion, the architect who
designed the cathedrds of Salamanca and Segovia, and finished in 1553 under the supervision of the
head engineer Pedro de la Cotera. The mogt highly skilled sculptors of the areaworked on the e egant
decoration and its exquisite gridwork was made by the same craftsmen that worked on the cathedrd at
Toledo, Francisco de Villdpando and Ruiz Diaz dd Corral.

The College had three large cloigters, two of which are dill standing: the “Patio de Santo tomés de
Villanueva and “El Trilinglie’ (S Thomeas of Villanueva Patio and the Trilingua Petio).

CENTRAL HALL

The Centrd Hdl and university chape are the only two parts of the College built in the times of its
founder. The Centra Hal or Scholastic Thegtre, located inthewest corridor of the Trilingud patio, was
the place where graduation ceremonies and other solemn academic events were held.

ST ILDEPHONSE CHAPEL

Burid grounds for many great men whose names are associated with the niversity, such asAntonio de
Nebrija, Pedro de Gumid or d Vivino Valés, King Phipip II's physician, it is one of the most

characteristic examples of the so-cdled “ Cisneros syl€’. The plasterwork on its wallsa harmonious
blend of Gothic, Mudgar and Renai ssance ornamenta motifs, and its polychrometic coffered stuccoed
ceilings, afford amost sumpuous amaosphere, making this building one of the Sateliest examples of our
early Renaissance architecture.

ST BERNARD MONASTERY

Founded for Cigtercian monksby Cardind Sandova y Rojasin 1617. Itsfacadeisaprime example of
Complutensan baroque architecture which harmonioudy combines brick as a building materid with
gonein the doorways, the main vaulted niche with the image of the patron saint, the founder’ s coats of
ams and afasciawith an dlusve inscription running dong the entire building.

The overdl floor plan of the churchisova in shape, and has six chapdls, thediagond onesareasmaller
scaemodd of thelarge centrd areawhichiscovered by ahugedliptica dome. Thisbuilding pioneered
urban transformation in this area of the city. Desingned to blend with its surroundings, the squre
comprising the Mother of God convent, the Archbishops paace and the St Bernard fagcade i
unguestionably one of the mogt attractive urban complexesin Alcaa

MAGISTERIAL CATHEDRAL



Built over the graves of Justo and Pastor, children who died as martyrs, this church is one of the only
two in the world bearing the tile “Magistgeria” ,Which meant that al itsclergymen had to be university
“magisters’. The current building was built between 1497 and 1514 under the orders of Cardina
Cisneros, the architects being Antén and Enrique Egas, who opted for alate Gothic style. The sturdy
tower standsadjacent to the gallery that isaaccessed from themain entrance; itsHerrerian style teeple
was completed in the seventeenth Century.

ARCHBISHOP' PALACE

Built in the Thirteenth Century as a palace-fortress for the archbishops of Toledo, its design was
influenced by the prelates who often spent long periods of time here. The archbishophs' palace was
protected by awalled enclosure, some important remnants of which are till standing such as the so-
caled Tenorio Tower in Palacio Square, which dates from the Fourteenth Century.

ST PHILIP OF NERI CHAPEL

Thischapd, founded towards the end of the Seventeeth Century, hasaBaroque churchwith andliptica
vault. Foremost among itstreasures areitsinteresting library and fine collection of rdligtious statutes of
the school of Gregorio Ferndndez and Alonso Cano, as well as an extensive array of paintings and
religious articles. It has a permanent exhibit in the area open to vigtors.

JUDGE’'SCHAPEL

Thisis one of the few remaining structures pertaining to what was the former parish church of & Mary
the Elder. The chapel was founded by King John II’s judge, Pedro Diaz de Toledo, in the Fifteenth
Century. Notethestriking cambered Roman arch, with Mudg ar plasterwork. Miguedl de Cervanteswas
baptized int he font in the centre of the chapd. This and the adjacent rooms comprise the city’s most
important temporary exhibit centre.



CERVANTESHOUSE AND MUSEUM

Miguel de Cervantes was born in this house in early October 1547. The building wasfully restoredin
1956 in the syle of ahome typicd of wedthy families in the mid- Sxteenth Century, in which many of
the original e ements were maintained. Foremost among these are frescoes discovered on awall of ad
adjacent building. The various quarters contain an interesting collection of paintings, carvings, furniture
and decorative articles of Cervantes' time, aswell as an extensive collection of old and new editions of
Cervantes writings.

CERVANTESTHEATRE-SALON

One of the cityjs two theatres. It was built in 1.888 in a record 29 days. Both the fagace and the
interiors, rectangular in shape (originally aso used asaballroom) werereformed in 1925. Restored and
reinaugurated in 1989, it offers awide variety of performances on wekends.

CERVANTESTHEATRE

Thisisa®“unique’ building, in that much of its congtruction congtituters arecord of its past asaplace of
public entertainment: theatre-in-the-round in 1602, roofed coliseum in 1785, Romantic theatrein 1830
and cinema in the seventies. It is currently being restored.

HOUSE OF THE INTERVIEW
This exhibit hal was formerly the church of the old monastery of St John of Penance, founded by

Cisnerosin 1504. Its name commemorates the first meeting in Alcala between Christopher Columbus
and Queen Isabd.



CALLE MAYOR (MAIN STREET)

Formerly known asthe” Cale Mayor delaJuderia’ (Main Street of the Jewish Quarter), asearly asthe
Thirteenth Century it was the busiest marketplace in Alcad, which explains why there are porticoes
practicdly from one end of the Street to the other. The wooden piedroitswre replaced by stone columns
in the Sixteenth Century, some of which are dill sanding, while others were in turn replace by square
pillars in the Nineteent Century. A very pleasant place to stroll, the “Cale Mayor” is il lined by
buildings from various periods of the city’ pad.

Next door to Cervantes houseisthe AntezanaHospita founded in 1485 and il used for that purpose.
Its patio, with a porticoed gdlery, is a satdy example of Gothic-Mudgar civil architecture. The St
Ignatius chapel was built ingde the church around the room where the saint stayed while he was in
Alcaa Opposite the hospitd thereis anarrow aley leading to a place cdled the “ Synagogue patio”,
ste of one of the Jewish peopl€e stwo templesin Alcaa before they were expelled in 1.492.

OPEN-AIR SCULPTURE MUSEUM

Inaugurated in 1.993, it intends to be the largest such museum of its kind in Europe. The museum
gretchesfrom the Madrid gate, running parallel to the walled enclosure adjacent to calle Andrés Saborit
(Andrés Saborit Street) and Via Compl utense (Compl utense Way), and includes around fifty sculptures
vaying widely in kind of materid, technique and style, from figurative to cubiam, including abstract art
and conceptudism. Poblador, Urculo, Amadeo Gabino, Aizcorbe, Alberdi, Berrutti, Cristoba, Bararri,
Orti, Beatriz Khon and Pepe Noja, her sponsor, are some of the artists whose works are on exhibit
here.

COMPLUTUM

Origindly located on the cerro dd Viso (Viso Hill) plateau, where remains of the old Roman road can
be found, Complutum was moved to the plain some time during the First Century. Ruins of the ancient



Roman city can be seen on the Camino del Juncd (Junca Road), nearby the Hermitage of the Holy
Children. Theruins of the bathhouse complex (hypocaug, tank, etc.) Aswell asof other civil buildings,
discovered in successive excavations, lie near the grand basilica (public squere where business was
done and sentences pronounced).

USEFUL INFORMATION
ALCALA DE HENARES

OficnaMunicipd de Turismo
Callgon de Santa Maria, 1
C.P. 28801. Tel. 91 889 26 94

Ayuntamiento
Plaza de Cervantes, 12
C.P.28801 Tel. 91 888 33 00

Informacion Ayuntamiento

Td. 010

Llamadas desde fuera dd término
91-880 27 62/ 91-880 28 11

RENFE
Paseo de la Estacion, 9n
Td. 91-888 01 96

Continental Auto (Bus Madrid)
Avda. Guadalgjara, 5
Tel. 91888 16 22

Teatro Salon Cervantes



Cervantes, 9n
Tdl. 91 882 24 97

Museo Casa Nata de Cervantes
Cdlelmagen, 2 (28802)
Td. 91-889 96 54

Universdad de Alcala de Henares
Plaza de San Diego, s/n (28801)
Td. 91-885 40 00

Hogeria“El Estudiante’
Cdle Colegios, 3
Tel. 91-888 03 30

Ruinas Romanas de Complutum y Museo de la Escuda Tdler de Arqueologia
Camino dd Juncd, gn
tel. 91-881 32 50

MADRID

Informacién Turigtica de la Comunidad de Madrid
Td. 4293177

Informacion Genera sobre Madrid
Td. 010

INFORIBERIA and Reserve
Tel. 902 400 500

Consorcio de Trangportes de la Comunidad de Madrid
Tel. 91-580 19 80

Business hours.

Smdl busnesses:

From 10 to 14 and from 17 to 20 h.
Department Sores:

From 10to 21 h.



